

# PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Docket No. 21-057-28 Docket No. 21-057-29

## HEARING

December 22, 2021

### ADVANCED REPORTING SOLUTIONS

801-746-5080 | [office@advancedrep.com](mailto:office@advancedrep.com) | [advancedrep.com](http://advancedrep.com)

**SALT LAKE** | 159 West Broadway, Broadway Lofts, Suite 100 | Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

**PROVO** | 3507 North University Avenue, Suite 350-D | Provo, Utah 84604

**ST. GEORGE** | 20 North Main Street, Suite 301 | St. George, Utah 84770



BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH

PASS-THROUGH APPLICATION OF	)	
DOMINION ENERGY UTAH for an	)	DOCKET NO. 21-057-28
adjustment in Rates and	)	
Charges for Natural Gas	)	
Service in Utah	)	
	)	
APPLICATION OF DOMINION	)	DOCKET NO. 21-057-29
ENERGY UTAH FOR AN	)	
ADJUSTMENT TO THE DAILY	)	
TRANSPORTATION IMBALANCE	)	
CHARGE.	)	HEARING OFFICER:
	)	YVONNE HOGLE
	)	
Defendants.	)	
	)	

December 22, 2021

10:30 a.m.

HEARING CONDUCTED VIA WEBEX VIDEOCONFERENCING

Reporter: Tamra J. Berry, CSR, RPR

A P P E A R A N C E S

HEARING OFFICER:

YVONNE HOGLE

APPEARING FOR DOMINION ENERGY:

JENNIFFER NELSON CLARK  
Jenniffer.clark@dominionenergy.com

APPEARING FOR THE ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE:

PATRICIA SCHMID  
pschmid@agutah.gov

ALSO PRESENT:

KELLY MENDENHALL  
AUSTIN SUMMERS  
DOUG WHEELWRIGHT  
ERIC ORTON

WITNESSES IN ORDER OF APPEARANCE:

JESSICA IPSON (Dominion)  
TYLER McINTOSH (Division)  
DAMIR SABANOVIC (Dominion)

1 P R O C E E D I N G S

2  
3 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Good morning  
4 everyone. It's approximately 10:30 a.m. on  
5 December 22nd, 2021.

6 My name is Yvonne Hogle, and we are here  
7 to consider two applications filed by Dominion Energy  
8 Utah or DEU. One is the pass-through application of  
9 Dominion Energy Utah for an adjustment in rates and  
10 charges for natural gas service in Utah, docket  
11 number 21-057-28. The second one is the application  
12 of Dominion Energy Utah for an adjustment to the  
13 daily transportation and balance charge in docket  
14 number 21-057-29.

15 Let's take appearances for the record,  
16 please, starting with the applicant.

17 MS. CLARK: Thank you. My name is  
18 Jenniffer Clark; I'm counsel for Dominion Energy. I  
19 have with me Jessica Ipson, who will serve as the  
20 company witness in docket number 21-057-28, and also  
21 Damir Sabanovic, who will be serving as the company  
22 witness in docket number 21-057-29.

23 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.  
24 For the Division, please.

25 MS. SCHMID: Thank you, Patricia Schmid

1 with the Utah Attorney General's Office.  
2 Tyler McIntosh is with us today, and he will serve as  
3 the Division's witness for both dockets. Thank you.

4 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.

5 Ms. Clark, are you ready to call your  
6 witness in docket number 21-057-28?

7 MS. CLARK: I am. The company calls  
8 Jessica Ipson.

9 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Good morning,  
10 Ms. Ipson.

11 MS. IPSON: Good morning.

12 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Do you swear to  
13 tell the truth?

14 THE WITNESS: Yes.

15 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

16

17 JESSICA IPSON,  
18 called as a witness, having been duly sworn, was  
19 examined and testified as follows:

20

21 EXAMINATION

22 BY MS. CLARK:

23 **Q. Ms. Ipson, please state your name and**  
24 **business address for the record.**

25 A. My name is Jessica Ipson, and the address

1 is 333 South State Street, Salt Lake City, Utah.

2 Q. What position do you hold with the  
3 company, Ms. Ipson?

4 A. I'm a regulatory analyst or a regulatory  
5 specialist.

6 Q. Ms. Ipson, did you prepare or cause to be  
7 prepared the application with its accompanying  
8 Exhibits 1.1 through 1.8 in this matter?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And do you adopt those documents as your  
11 testimony today?

12 A. Yes.

13 MS. CLARK: The company moves for the  
14 admission of the application and accompanying exhibit  
15 of 1.1 through 1.8.

16 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you. Any  
17 objection?

18 MS. SCHMID: No objection.

19 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. They're  
20 admitted. Thank you.

21 (APPLICATION & EXHIBITS 1.1 - 1.8 WERE ADMITTED.)

22 Q. (BY MS. CLARK) Ms. Ipson, can you please  
23 summarize the relief the company seeks in this  
24 docket?

25 A. Yes. In pass-through docket number

1 21-057-28, Dominion Energy respectfully asks the Utah  
2 Public Service Commission for approval of  
3 \$615,389,550 in Utah gas costs coverage. This  
4 represents an overall increase of \$28,885,223. The  
5 components of the increase are: First, an increase  
6 of \$28,315,488 in commodity costs, and secondly an  
7 increase of \$569,735 in supplier non-gas costs. The  
8 increase being proposed is due to higher forecasted  
9 gas tests for the test period.

10 This request also includes an amortization  
11 of the commodity portion of the actual October 2021  
12 under-collected 191 balance of \$65,305,666 by a 57.02  
13 cent per dekatherm debit surcharge. REN [phonetic]  
14 proceeds of \$76,569 were generated through the  
15 company's C&G station, decreasing the NGV class  
16 commodity by a credit of 37.839 cents per dekatherm.

17 The company is also requesting to continue  
18 amortizing the under-collected S&G costs of  
19 \$5,372,883, which leads to the debit amortization  
20 charges shown on Exhibit 1.5 page 6. The costs of  
21 purchased gas was developed using forecasted gas  
22 prices from both S&P Global Platts and IHS Market.

23 If this application is approved, a typical  
24 GS Utah customer, using 80 dekatherms per year, would  
25 see an increase of \$20.18 or a total annual increase

1 of about 2.63 percent. These rates are just,  
2 reasonable, and in the public interest. Therefore,  
3 we request the rates proposed in commodity and S&G be  
4 allowed to go into effect on January 1st, 2022 on an  
5 interim basis. That concludes my summary.

6 MS. CLARK: Ms. Ipson is available for  
7 commission questions or cross-examination.

8 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.

9 Are there any questions, cross-examination  
10 questions for Ms. Ipson from the DPU?

11 MS. SCHMID: No questions. Thank you.

12 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay, thank you.

13 I also do not have any questions. Thank  
14 you, Ms. Ipson.

15 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

16 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: The Division  
17 please.

18 MS. SCHMID: Good morning. The Division  
19 would like to call Mr. Tyler McIntosh as its witness  
20 in this docket. Could he please be sworn?

21 THE WITNESS: Yes.

22 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. McIntosh, do  
23 you swear to tell the truth?

24 THE WITNESS: I do.

25 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.



1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

TYLER MCINTOSH,  
called as a witness, having been duly sworn, was  
examined and testified as follows:

EXAMINATION

BY MS. SCHMID:

**Q. Good morning.**

A. Good morning.

**Q. Could you please state and spell your name for the record.**

A. My name is Tyler McIntosh, T-y-l-e-r M-c-capital I-n-t-o-s-h.

**Q. By whom are you employed, and what is your title?**

A. I am employed with the Utah Division of Public Utilities, and I am a utility analyst in that -- in the Division.

**Q. What is your business address?**

A. 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah.

**Q. In conjunction with your employment have you participated on behalf of the Division in this docket?**

A. I have.

**Q. Could you please briefly describe your**

1 **activities?**

2 A. So I reviewed, I interpreted, and  
3 processed and analyzed these dockets that were filed.

4 **Q. Did you prepare or cause to be prepared**  
5 **the Division's Action Response Request dated**  
6 **December 16th in this docket?**

7 A. I did.

8 **Q. Do you have any changes or corrections to**  
9 **that response?**

10 A. No corrections. No changes. No.

11 **Q. Do you adopt the contents of that response**  
12 **as your testimony here today?**

13 A. I do.

14 MS. SCHMID: With that the Division would  
15 like to request the admission of the Division's  
16 Action Request Response in this docket dated  
17 December 16th.

18 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you. Does  
19 the DEU have any objection?

20 MS. CLARK: No, there's no objection.

21 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.  
22 They're admitted.

23 (DIVISION'S ACTION REQUEST RESPONSE ADMITTED.)

24 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

25 **Q. (BY MS. SCHMID) Mr. McIntosh, do you have**

1 **a summary to present today?**

2 A. I do.

3 **Q. Please proceed.**

4 A. Okay. Docket number 21-057-28, known as  
5 the 191 through pass-application, asks for commission  
6 approval for an interim rate increase of 28.3 million  
7 in the commodity component and an interim rate  
8 increase of 0.6 million in the supplier non-gas  
9 component of the natural gas rates for a net increase  
10 of 28.9 million.

11 The driving force behind the requested  
12 rate increase is an increase in the forecasted gas  
13 costs for the test period. The gas price forecast is  
14 based on estimates from two independent agencies.  
15 For the test period it is anticipated that  
16 approximately 46 percent of the total gas requirement  
17 will be satisfied from the Wexpro cost of service gas  
18 production; 22 percent will be satisfied from current  
19 purchase contracts or contacts, excuse me; and  
20 32 percent will be purchased with future contracts  
21 and spot market transactions.

22 If the requested increase is approved, a  
23 typical residential customer, using 80 dekatherms per  
24 year, will see an increase in their total annual bill  
25 of \$20.18 or 2.63 percent.

1           The Division recommends that the proposed  
2 rate be approved on an interim basis until a full  
3 audit of 191 account can be completed. The Division  
4 believes that the requested increase is in the public  
5 interest, will result in just and reasonable interim  
6 rates, and recommends that the proposed interim rate  
7 changes be approved within an effective date of  
8 January 1st, 2022.

9           That concludes my summary. Thank you.

10          MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

11          Mr. McIntosh is available for  
12 cross-examination questions and questions from the  
13 hearing officer.

14          HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Any questions for  
15 Mr. McIntosh?

16          MS. CLARK: I have no questions. Thanks.

17          HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.  
18 I also do not have any questions.

19          Thank you, Mr. McIntosh.

20          THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

21          HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: And I guess we go  
22 to our next docket. Go ahead and call your first  
23 witness, please.

24          MS. CLARK: Thank you. The company calls  
25 Mr. Damir Sabanovic.

1 THE WITNESS: Hello.

2 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Hello Mr.  
3 Sabanovic. Do you swear to tell the truth?

4 THE WITNESS: I do.

5 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.

6

7 DAMIR SABANOVIC,  
8 called as a witness, having been duly sworn, was  
9 examined and testified as follows:

10

11 EXAMINATION

12 BY MS. CLARK:

13 Q. Mr. Sabanovic, please state your name and  
14 business address for the record.

15 A. My name is Damir Sabanovic, and my  
16 business address is 333 South South State Street,  
17 Salt Lake City, Utah.

18 Q. Mr. Sabanovic, did you prepare or cause to  
19 be prepared the application in this matter along with  
20 the accompanying Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. And do you adopt those documents as your  
23 testimony today?

24 A. Yes.

25 MS. CLARK: The company moves for the

1 admission of the application in this matter, along  
2 with accompanying Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3.

3 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Any objection?

4 MS. SCHMID: No objection.

5 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you,  
6 they're admitted.

7 (APPLICATION & EXHIBITS 1.1 - 1.3 WERE ADMITTED.)

8 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

9 **Q. (BY MS. CLARK) Mr. Sabanovic, can you**  
10 **please summarize the relief the company seeks in this**  
11 **docket?**

12 A. Yes. In docket number 21-057-29, the  
13 company requests an adjustment to the transportation  
14 imbalance charge to appropriately collect costs  
15 associated with managing imbalanced dekatherms  
16 transported on the company's distribution system.  
17 The proposed imbalance charge reflects costs borne by  
18 the company to manage net imbalance dekatherms to  
19 transportation service companies divided by the  
20 imbalance dekatherms over the 5 percent tolerance  
21 threshold. The resulting imbalance rate of 8.42  
22 cents is 1.3 percent higher than the previous  
23 transportation imbalance charge. This charge will  
24 only be applied to transportation service volumes  
25 that differ from nomination volumes by more than 5

1 percent. The transportation imbalance charge  
2 continues to serve its intended purpose and is just,  
3 reasonable, and in the public interest, and the  
4 company requests approval of these interim rates  
5 effective January 1st, 2022. This concludes my  
6 summary.

7 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

8 Mr. Sabanovic is available for commission  
9 questions or cross-examination.

10 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Any  
11 cross-examination questions for Mr. Sabanovic?

12 MS. SCHMID: Nothing from the Division.  
13 Thank you.

14 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: And I also don't  
15 have any.

16 Thank you, Mr. Sabanovic.

17 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

18 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Ms. Schmid, will  
19 you call your witness please?

20 MS. SCHMID: Yes. The Division's witness  
21 in this case is also Mr. McIntosh.

22 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.

23 (Mr. McIntosh is re-called.)  
24

25 EXAMINATION

1 BY MS. SCHMID:

2 Q. As you've already stated your name,  
3 employer, title, and business address in the previous  
4 docket, do you affirm that they remain the same for  
5 this docket?

6 A. They remain the same.

7 Q. And do you affirm that you will tell the  
8 truth and are sworn in this docket?

9 A. Yes, I will tell the truth.

10 Q. Did you prepare or cause to be prepared  
11 and filed the Division's Action Request Response in  
12 this docket dated December 16th of this year?

13 A. I assisted in preparing this docket, yes.

14 Q. Do you have any changes or corrections to  
15 that action request response?

16 A. No.

17 Q. Could you please briefly describe your  
18 activities in this docket.

19 A. So I helped review and analyze the docket.  
20 I actually did not write the actual memo, but I did  
21 help analyze and review and go through the memo that  
22 was written as well.

23 Q. Do you --

24 A. That's what I did. Sorry, go ahead.

25 Q. Do you adopt the contents of that memo as



1 your testimony here today?

2 A. I do.

3 Q. Any changes or corrections?

4 A. No.

5 MS. SCHMID: With that the Division would  
6 like to request admission of its Action Request  
7 Response in this docket.

8 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you. Any  
9 objection?

10 MS. CLARK: No objection.

11 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. They're  
12 admitted.

13 (DIVISION'S ACTION REQUEST RESPONSE ADMITTED.)

14 Q. (BY MS. SCHMID) Do you have a summary to  
15 present today in this docket, Mr. McIntosh?

16 A. I do.

17 Q. Please proceed.

18 A. Okay. Docket number 21-057-29 for the  
19 transportation imbalance charge was established to  
20 charge transportation customers for the supplier  
21 non-gas services that are being used on the company's  
22 natural gas distribution system. The calculation of  
23 this rate is based on the methodology approved in  
24 docket number 14-4057-31 and is to be adjusted with  
25 each pass-through filing and in the next general rate

1 case.

2 On December 1st, 2021 Dominion Energy Utah  
3 filed the application identified above. The  
4 Commission subsequently issued an action request to  
5 the Division on December 16th, 2021. The Commission  
6 issued a scheduling order in this docket.

7 This company's application requests an  
8 approximate 1.3 percent increase in the daily  
9 transportation imbalance charge from the rate that  
10 was approved in docket number 21-057-18. The current  
11 filing represents the third adjustment in 2021 and  
12 was filed simultaneously with docket number  
13 21-057-28. If approved the rate would increase from  
14 .08316 to the proposed rate of .08424. This rate  
15 applies to the transportation customers with daily  
16 imbalance volumes outside the plus or minus 5 percent  
17 tolerance level. This rate applies to customers that  
18 are taking service under the transportation rate  
19 schedules, and any amount collected is credited to GS  
20 customers through the 191 account.

21 This rate does not impact all  
22 transportation customers in the same way and applies  
23 only if a customer's nominations are outside the plus  
24 or minus 5 percent daily tolerance limit.  
25 Transportation customers can minimize and possibly

1 avoid this charge through accurate daily gas  
2 nominations.

3 The Division believes that the requested  
4 changes are in the public interest, will result in  
5 just and reasonable rates, and recommends that the  
6 proposed rate be approved with an effective date of  
7 January 1st, 2022. That concludes my summary. Thank  
8 you.

9 MS. SCHMID: May I have just one moment?

10 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Yes.

11 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. Mr. McIntosh is  
12 now available for cross-examination questions and  
13 questions from the hearing officer.

14 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you. Any  
15 cross-examination for Mr. McIntosh?

16 MS. CLARK: No. Thank you.

17 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you. I  
18 don't have any either.

19 Thank you, Mr. McIntosh.

20 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

21 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: And I believe,  
22 unless -- if anybody else has anything to add or any  
23 questions, speak now.

24 (A note from the court reporter requesting  
25 the spellings of names.)

1 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: And at this time,  
2 starting with the applicant, I'd like for each of the  
3 witnesses to spell their names for the court  
4 reporter, please, beginning with the witness in  
5 21-057-28.

6 MS. IPSON: Jessica. J-e-s-s-i-c-a. Last  
7 name I-p-s-o-n.

8 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.

9 Tyler McIntosh.

10 MR. McINTOSH: That's T-y-l-e-r M-c  
11 capital I-n-t-o-s-h.

12 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you. Let's  
13 go to the applicant's witness in 21-057-29 please.

14 MR. SABANOVIC: First name is Damir,  
15 D-a-m-i-r. Last name S-a-b-a-n-o-v-i-c.

16 HEARING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay, perfect. I  
17 think that's all we have, unless anybody has any  
18 questions or comments.

19 Thank you everyone for your time this  
20 morning and have a Happy Holiday. Stay safe and safe  
21 travels if you're going anywhere.

22 And I'm aware that we need to issue this  
23 by end of the year before the January 1, 2022  
24 effective date. So we're adjourned. Thank you.

25 (Concluded at 10:50 a.m.)

REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF UTAH )  
 ) ss.  
COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

I, Tamra J. Berry, Registered Professional Reporter in and for the State of Utah, do hereby certify:

That said public service commission hearing was taken down by me in stenotype on December 22, 2021, through Webex and was thereafter transcribed and that a true and correct transcription of said testimony/statement is set forth in the preceding pages;

I further certify that I am not kin or otherwise associated with any of the parties to said cause of action and that I am not interested in the outcome thereof.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL this 6th day of January, 2021.



Tamra J. Berry, RPR, CSR

<hr/>	<b>21-057-29</b> 3:14,22 13:12	<b>Action</b> 9:5,16,23
<b>\$</b>	<b>22</b> 10:18	<b>activities</b> 9:1
<hr/>	<b>22nd</b> 3:5	<b>actual</b> 6:11
<b>\$20.18</b> 6:25 10:25	<b>28.3</b> 10:6	<b>address</b> 4:24,25 8:19 12:14,16
<b>\$28,315,488</b> 6:6	<b>28.9</b> 10:10	<b>adjustment</b> 3:9,12 13:13
<b>\$28,885,223</b> 6:4	<hr/>	<b>admission</b> 5:14 9:15 13:1
<b>\$5,372,883</b> 6:19	<b>3</b>	<b>admitted</b> 5:20,21 9:22,23 13:6,7
<b>\$569,735</b> 6:7	<hr/>	<b>adopt</b> 5:10 9:11 12:22
<b>\$615,389,550</b> 6:3	<b>300</b> 8:20	<b>agencies</b> 10:14
<b>\$65,305,666</b> 6:12	<b>32</b> 10:20	<b>ahead</b> 11:22
<b>\$76,569</b> 6:14	<b>333</b> 5:1 12:16	<b>allowed</b> 7:4
<hr/>	<b>37.839</b> 6:16	<b>amortization</b> 6:10,19
<b>0</b>	<hr/>	<b>amortizing</b> 6:18
<hr/>	<b>4</b>	<b>analyst</b> 5:4 8:17
<b>0.6</b> 10:8	<hr/>	<b>analyzed</b> 9:3
<hr/>	<b>46</b> 10:16	<b>annual</b> 6:25 10:24
<b>1</b>	<hr/>	<b>anticipated</b> 10:15
<hr/>	<b>5</b>	<b>appearances</b> 3:15
<b>1.1</b> 5:8,15,21 12:20 13:2, 7	<hr/>	<b>applicant</b> 3:16
<b>1.3</b> 12:20 13:2,7,22	<b>5</b> 13:20,25	<b>application</b> 3:8,11 5:7, 14,21 6:23 12:19 13:1,7
<b>1.5</b> 6:20	<b>57.02</b> 6:12	<b>applications</b> 3:7
<b>1.8</b> 5:8,15,21	<hr/>	<b>applied</b> 13:24
<b>10:30</b> 3:4	<b>6</b>	<b>appropriately</b> 13:14
<b>160</b> 8:20	<b>6</b> 6:20	<b>approval</b> 6:2 10:6 14:4
<b>16th</b> 9:6,17	<hr/>	<b>approved</b> 6:23 10:22 11:2,7
<b>191</b> 6:12 10:5 11:3	<b>8</b>	<b>approximately</b> 3:4 10:16
<b>1st</b> 7:4 11:8 14:5	<hr/>	<b>asks</b> 6:1 10:5
<hr/>	<b>8.42</b> 13:21	
<b>2</b>	<hr/>	
<hr/>	<b>A</b>	
<b>2.63</b> 7:1 10:25	<hr/>	
<b>2021</b> 3:5 6:11	<b>a.m.</b> 3:4	
<b>2022</b> 7:4 11:8 14:5	<b>accompanying</b> 5:7,14 12:20 13:2	
<b>21-057-28</b> 3:11,20 4:6 6:1 10:4	<b>account</b> 11:3	

**Attorney** 4:1

**audit** 11:3

---

**B**

---

**balance** 3:13 6:12

**based** 10:14

**basis** 7:5 11:2

**behalf** 8:22

**believes** 11:4

**bill** 10:24

**borne** 13:17

**briefly** 8:25

**business** 4:24 8:19  
12:14,16

---

**C**

---

**C&g** 6:15

**call** 4:5 7:19 11:22 14:19

**called** 4:18 8:3 12:8

**calls** 4:7 11:24

**capital** 8:13

**case** 14:21

**cent** 6:13

**cents** 6:16 13:22

**charge** 3:13 13:14,17,23  
14:1

**charges** 3:10 6:20

**City** 5:1 8:20 12:17

**Clark** 3:17,18 4:5,7,22  
5:13,22 7:6 9:20 11:16,  
24 12:12,25 13:8,9 14:7

**class** 6:15

**collect** 13:14

**commission** 6:2 7:7 10:5  
14:8

**commodity** 6:6,11,16 7:3  
10:7

**companies** 13:19

**company** 3:20,21 4:7  
5:3,13,23 6:17 11:24  
12:25 13:10,13,18 14:4

**company's** 6:15 13:16

**completed** 11:3

**component** 10:7,9

**components** 6:5

**concludes** 7:5 11:9 14:5

**conjunction** 8:21

**contacts** 10:19

**contents** 9:11

**continue** 6:17

**continues** 14:2

**contracts** 10:19,20

**corrections** 9:8,10

**cost** 10:17

**costs** 6:3,6,7,18,20 10:13  
13:14,17

**counsel** 3:18

**coverage** 6:3

**credit** 6:16

**cross-examination** 7:7,9  
11:12 14:9,11

**current** 10:18

**customer** 6:24 10:23

---

**D**

---

**daily** 3:13

**Damir** 3:21 11:25 12:7,15

**date** 11:7

**dated** 9:5,16

**debit** 6:13,19

**December** 3:5 9:6,17

**decreasing** 6:15

**dekatherm** 6:13,16

**dekatherms** 6:24 10:23  
13:15,18,20

**describe** 8:25

**DEU** 3:8 9:19

**developed** 6:21

**differ** 13:25

**distribution** 13:16

**divided** 13:19

**Division** 3:24 7:16,18  
8:16,18,22 9:14 11:1,3  
14:12

**division's** 4:3 9:5,15,23  
14:20

**docket** 3:10,13,20,22 4:6  
5:24,25 7:20 8:23 9:6,16  
10:4 11:22 13:11,12

**dockets** 4:3 9:3

**documents** 5:10 12:22

**Dominion** 3:7,9,12,18  
6:1

**DPU** 7:10

**driving** 10:11

**due** 6:8

<b>duly</b> 4:18 8:3 12:8	<b>Good</b> 3:3 4:9,11 7:18 8:8,9	<b>Ipson</b> 3:19 4:8,10,11,17,23,25 5:3,6,22 7:6,10,14
<hr/> <b>E</b> <hr/>	<b>GS</b> 6:24	<hr/> <b>J</b> <hr/>
<b>East</b> 8:20	<b>guess</b> 11:21	<b>January</b> 7:4 11:8 14:5
<b>effect</b> 7:4	<hr/> <b>H</b> <hr/>	<b>Jennifer</b> 3:18
<b>effective</b> 11:7 14:5	<b>hearing</b> 3:3,23 4:4,9,12,15 5:16,19 7:8,12,16,22,25 9:18,21 11:13,14,17,21 12:2,5 13:3,5 14:10,14,18,22	<b>Jessica</b> 3:19 4:8,17,25
<b>employed</b> 8:14,16	<b>higher</b> 6:8 13:22	<hr/> <b>L</b> <hr/>
<b>employment</b> 8:21	<b>Hogle</b> 3:3,6,23 4:4,9,12,15 5:16,19 7:8,12,16,22,25 9:18,21 11:14,17,21 12:2,5 13:3,5 14:10,14,18,22	<b>Lake</b> 5:1 8:20 12:17
<b>Energy</b> 3:7,9,12,18 6:1	<b>hold</b> 5:2	<b>leads</b> 6:19
<b>estimates</b> 10:14	<hr/> <b>I</b> <hr/>	<hr/> <b>M</b> <hr/>
<b>EXAMINATION</b> 4:21 8:6 12:11 14:25	<b>I-N-T-O-S-H</b> 8:13	<b>M-C-</b> 8:12
<b>examined</b> 4:19 8:4 12:9	<b>IHS</b> 6:22	<b>manage</b> 13:18
<b>excuse</b> 10:19	<b>imbalance</b> 13:14,17,18,20,21,23 14:1	<b>managing</b> 13:15
<b>exhibit</b> 5:14 6:20	<b>imbalanced</b> 13:15	<b>market</b> 6:22 10:21
<b>Exhibits</b> 5:8,21 12:20 13:2,7	<b>includes</b> 6:10	<b>matter</b> 5:8 12:19 13:1
<hr/> <b>F</b> <hr/>	<b>increase</b> 6:4,5,7,8,25 10:6,8,9,12,22,24 11:4	<b>Mcintosh</b> 4:2 7:19,22 8:2,12 9:25 11:11,15,19 14:21,23
<b>filed</b> 3:7 9:3	<b>independent</b> 10:14	<b>million</b> 10:6,8,10
<b>force</b> 10:11	<b>intended</b> 14:2	<b>morning</b> 3:3 4:9,11 7:18 8:8,9
<b>forecast</b> 10:13	<b>interest</b> 7:2 11:5 14:3	<b>moves</b> 5:13 12:25
<b>forecasted</b> 6:8,21 10:12	<b>interim</b> 7:5 10:6,7 11:2,5,6 14:4	<hr/> <b>N</b> <hr/>
<b>full</b> 11:2	<b>interpreted</b> 9:2	<b>natural</b> 3:10 10:9
<b>future</b> 10:20		<b>net</b> 10:9 13:18
<hr/> <b>G</b> <hr/>		<b>NGV</b> 6:15
<b>gas</b> 3:10 6:3,9,21 10:9,12,13,16,17		<b>nomination</b> 13:25
<b>General's</b> 4:1		<b>non-gas</b> 6:7 10:8
<b>generated</b> 6:14		
<b>Global</b> 6:22		



**number** 3:11,14,20,22  
4:6 5:25 10:4 13:12

---

**O**

---

**objection** 5:17,18 9:19,  
20 13:3,4

**October** 6:11

**Office** 4:1

**officer** 3:3,23 4:4,9,12,15  
5:16,19 7:8,12,16,22,25  
9:18,21 11:13,14,17,21  
12:2,5 13:3,5 14:10,14,  
18,22

---

**P**

---

**participated** 8:22

**pass-application** 10:5

**pass-through** 3:8 5:25

**Patricia** 3:25

**percent** 7:1 10:16,18,20,  
25 13:20,22 14:1

**period** 6:9 10:13,15

**phonetic** 6:13

**Platts** 6:22

**portion** 6:11

**position** 5:2

**prepare** 5:6 9:4 12:18

**prepared** 5:7 9:4 12:19

**present** 10:1

**previous** 13:22

**price** 10:13

**prices** 6:22

**proceed** 10:3

**proceeds** 6:14

**processed** 9:3

**production** 10:18

**proposed** 6:8 7:3 11:1,6  
13:17

**public** 6:2 7:2 8:17 11:4  
14:3

**purchase** 10:19

**purchased** 6:21 10:20

**purpose** 14:2

---

**Q**

---

**questions** 7:7,9,10,11,13  
11:12,14,16,18 14:9,11

---

**R**

---

**rate** 10:6,7,12 11:2,6  
13:21

**rates** 3:9 7:1,3 10:9 11:6  
14:4

**re-called** 14:23

**ready** 4:5

**reasonable** 7:2 11:5 14:3

**recommends** 11:1,6

**record** 3:15 4:24 8:11  
12:14

**reflects** 13:17

**regulatory** 5:4

**relief** 5:23 13:10

**REN** 6:13

**represents** 6:4

**request** 6:10 7:3 9:5,15,  
16,23

**requested** 10:11,22 11:4

**requesting** 6:17

**requests** 13:13 14:4

**requirement** 10:16

**residential** 10:23

**respectfully** 6:1

**response** 9:5,9,11,16,23

**result** 11:5

**resulting** 13:21

**reviewed** 9:2

---

**S**

---

**S&g** 6:18 7:3

**S&p** 6:22

**Sabanovic** 3:21 11:25  
12:3,7,13,15,18 13:9  
14:8,11,16

**Salt** 5:1 8:20 12:17

**satisfied** 10:17,18

**Schmid** 3:25 5:18 7:11,  
18 8:7 9:14,24,25 11:10  
13:4 14:12,18,20

**seeks** 5:23 13:10

**serve** 3:19 4:2 14:2

**service** 3:10 6:2 10:17  
13:19,24

**serving** 3:21

**shown** 6:20

**South** 5:1 8:20 12:16

**specialist** 5:5

**spell** 8:10

**spot** 10:21

**starting** 3:16  
**state** 4:23 5:1 8:10 12:13,  
16  
**station** 6:15  
**Street** 5:1 12:16  
**summarize** 5:23 13:10  
**summary** 7:5 10:1 11:9  
14:6  
**supplier** 6:7 10:8  
**surcharge** 6:13  
**swear** 4:12 7:23 12:3  
**sworn** 4:18 7:20 8:3 12:8  
**system** 13:16

---

**T**

---

**T-Y-L-E-R** 8:12  
**test** 6:9 10:13,15  
**testified** 4:19 8:4 12:9  
**testimony** 5:11 9:12  
12:23  
**tests** 6:9  
**threshold** 13:21  
**title** 8:15  
**today** 4:2 5:11 9:12 10:1  
12:23  
**tolerance** 13:20  
**total** 6:25 10:16,24  
**transactions** 10:21  
**transportation** 3:13  
13:13,19,23,24 14:1  
**transported** 13:16  
**truth** 4:13 7:23 12:3

**Tyler** 4:2 7:19 8:2,12  
**typical** 6:23 10:23

---

**U**

---

**under-collected** 6:12,18  
**Utah** 3:8,9,10,12 4:1 5:1  
6:1,3,24 8:16,20 12:17  
**Utilities** 8:17  
**utility** 8:17

---

**V**

---

**volumes** 13:24,25

---

**W**

---

**Wexpro** 10:17

---

**Y**

---

**year** 6:24 10:24  
**Yvonne** 3:6